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CLARIFICATION NO. 1 
 

FOR 
 

  CHICAGO O’HARE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
TERMINAL 5 LOWER LEVEL PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION  

 
Specifications and Contract Documents Number:  132125 

 
 
For which bids are scheduled to be opened in the office of the Chief Procurement Officer, Room 
103, City Hall, 121 North LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602, at 11:00 a.m., July 21, 2015. 
 
The following clarifications/answers to bidder’s questions for the above referenced Contract 
Documents are being issued to all prospective bidders. The questions and answers/clarifications 
by the City are for informational purposes only and do not amend the Contract Documents. 
 

 
NOTICE OF CLARIFICATIONS 

 
QUESTIONS FROM BIDDERS 

 
Question 1: The following items (not necessarily an exhaustive list) are required prior to 

construction: Permits, Construction Operations Plan; Sustainability Requirements; 
Contractor/Subcontractor Equipment Verification Report; Local/Regional Materials 
Estimate; Recycled Content Estimate; Sustainable Temporary Construction 
Materials Pre-Construction Estimate; Construction Waste Management Plan and 
C&D Recycling Worksheet; Anticipated Workforce; Procedures, Methods, Structures 
and Equipment; Subcontractor Agreements; Source of Materials; Key Personnel; 
Baseline Schedule; Shop Drawings (including index and schedule), Product Data 
and Samples. Since there is no mobilization period in the construction schedule 
(reference, for example, Sheet G–302); will the time necessary to generate 
submittals such as these count against the contractor’s allotted construction time?   

  
Response 1: Yes, upon Contract Award, pursuant to Section VIII.A. of Part  Two of Three of 

the Contract Documents, a Start Date will be established in the Notice To 
Proceed to be issued by the Chicago Department of Aviation. The Contractor 
is responsible for meeting all Contract requirements before construction 
activities commence. This has been included in the overall Contract duration. 
No additional time will be allowed. 

 
Question 2: The construction schedule may not allow for development of a concrete mix design 

per P-610, particularly regarding strength testing: “Submit concrete mix designs 
prepared by an independent testing laboratory meeting the requirements of ASTM 
C1077 in accordance with ACI 301 ‘Specifications for Structural Concrete.’” May the 
Contractor provide past concrete mix designs in lieu of a job-specific concrete mix 
design per ASTM C1077/ACI 301?  

 
Response 2: Mix designs developed within the past 6 months will be acceptable provided 

proposed mix meets the requirements of the specification. 
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Question 3: Book 2, Article IX page 2–49, Paragraph F.1 says in part: “no payments on the basis 

of work performed by a Subcontractor shall be paid until copies of all bonds required 
and any certificates of insurance required of the Subcontractors by the Contract 
have been filed with the Commissioner.” What Subcontractor bond requirements 
exist in the bid documents?  

  
Response 3: A Performance and Payment Bond is required and must be provided by the 

General Contractor for the full value of the contract award. 
 
Question 4: Book 2 Article XIV Paragraph J.8 on page 2–87 calls for project sign(s) “when 

required by the Technical Specifications….” Please clarify any project sign 
requirements. Would the sign(s) be paid by the allowance, or would this be 
incidental to the contract? 

  
Response 4: No project sign will be required for this project. 
 
 Question 5: Specification Section 01010–3 Paragraph 1.06.C.1 requires the Contractor to 

acquire “all permits.” Please list what permits that the Contractor must acquire. 
 
Response 5: No permits are anticipated for this project. 
 
Question 6: Please provide a copy of the FAA 7460 determination. 
  
Response 6: The 7460 document is not needed for this project. Anticipated working heights 

for construction equipment do not penetrate any airspace or NAVAID critical 

area.  Runway 32R is to be closed prior to this project start date. 

Question 7: Please provide a copy of any geotechnical report(s) prepared for this project. 
 
Response 7: No geotechnical borings were performed for this project. 
 
Question 8: Staging and Storage Areas Note 5 on Sheet G–103 states in part “excess spoils, 

excess [asphalt grindings, asphalt rubble], Portland cement concrete rubble and 
unsuitable excavation must be disposed of at approved locations on site.” Please 
specify where.   

 
Response 8: Approved locations are on secure portions of airport property. 
 
Question 9: Since the plans don’t specifically delineate the actual Class B patch locations, what 

is an approximate size (or range) for most (say 75%) of the Class B patches?   
 
Response 9: Concrete patches will typically be a minimum of a quarter panel (lane width by 

4’) up to several panels long. The typical size ranges between 5 Square Yards 
to 67 Square Yards. 

 
Question 10: Sheet G–303 has various fill and hatching symbols, but no legend. Please provide a 

legend.   
 
Response 10: These filled shapes represent the different phases/stages of construction that 

are shown in more detail on the Drawing Sheets G-304 through G-311. They 
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are called out by a leader line from the phase number that they represent. The 
phase schedule is provided on Drawing Sheet G-302. 

 
Question 11: Where is the source for CDA-supplied aggregate?  
 
Response 11: The source will be from a crusher stockpile located on secure portions of 

airport property. 
 
Question 12: The Schedule of Prices in the Bid Documents, Items #15 and # 16. Please clarify 

the portion of the statement that says: “Owner Provided Crushed Recycled 
Concrete”. Will the Concrete material be delivered to the work site, and readily 
Available for the contractor’s equipment to bucket it up and spread it for the 
Pavement sub Base? Or will the Contractor have to carry some Transportation 
Money to go the storage area on the Airport property to get it loaded in a Truck and 
drive it to the work site. Please clarify.   

 
Response 12: The Contractor will be responsible for loading the material from CDA’s 

stockpiles created at a secured site on Airport property and transporting it to 
the construction site. 

 
Question 13: Has the “Owner Provided Recycled Concrete” been tested, and its proctor value 

adjusted for 95% compaction ability?    
 
Response 13: The crushed concrete stockpiles will be tested for CA-6 gradation and 

compaction properties by the CDA's separate crushing contractor to monitor 
the quality of the aggregate produced for the Contractor's use.    

 
Question 14: Note #5.) on sheet G-103 indicates that excess excavated materials will be 

disposed of at the appropriate stockpile site on Airport property. Yet, the project 
specification – Pavement Removal / P-150-2, PART-4, 4.01 – GENERAL A. States, 
that excavated concrete material will be disposes of offsite. Please clarify which is 
correct?   

 
Response 14: Drawing Sheet G-103 Note #5 indicates acceptable construction materials that 

can remain on Airport property and that "Material will be wasted or stockpiled 
on the airport in locations as approved." The contractor will be provided a 
location for these materials by the Commissioner upon award. This includes 
the concrete and asphalt materials included in Specification P-150. 

 
 Specification P-150 refers to specifically the concrete and asphalt materials.  

The Contractor must remove the pavement "offsite" in that it cannot remain 
on the construction site and that the Contractor must haul it to an approved 
location on Airport property.  Per P-150 Part 2 Sect. 2.01C - "Surplus materials 
or broken pavements will be disposed of as directed by the Commissioner 
outside of the Airport limits." Any materials that are not accepted for recycling 
on the airport must be disposed of off airport property and in accordance with 
Specification 01524. 

 
 

END OF CLARIFICATION NO. 1 


